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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT /
WESTERN DISTRICT OF NORTH CAROLINA v ¥, %

CHARLOTTE DIVISION L Oy ™0r o
. . : 4 W %
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA ) DOCKET NO. 3:06CR151 A -]
) R
V. )
) PLEA AGREEMENT
BRIAN WALL COYLE ) '

a’'k/a "Steven Blain" )
a’k/a "Boracho," )
' )

- NOW COMES the United States of America, by and through Gretchen C.F. Shappert, United
States Attorney for the Western District of North_ Carol'ina,' and the defendant, BRIAN WALL
COYLE, .in persbn and fhrough counsel, Richard Lamb Brown, Ir., and respectfully inform the -
Court that they have reached the followirig agr'eexﬁent: E

o I Plea

1. Thé defendant agrees to enter a voluntary plea of guilty to Coﬁnt 0n§'¢harging the
defendant with Conspiracy in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 371 aﬁd Count 23 charging the defendant w_iﬁ '
Wiré Fraud in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1343 in ﬁe Bill of Indictment, ahd admits to being in fact
guilty as charged in the Counts. In exchar;g_e for defendant’s guilty pleas as set fori_:h beloﬁ, the
Governmient agrees that it will move. to dismiss defendant from the remaininé counts of the Bill of
Indictment ét the _ti_mé of sentencing, | | | |

o | | 1. Sentence -

2. . The defendant is awate that the penalty for'Conspiracy to Commit Wire Fraud is:

a. = amaximum 5 years in prison per count,
b, amaximum $250,000 fine per count,
1
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d.

e.

a mandatory special assessment of $100 00 per count, =

aterm of supervrsed release of not more than three years, and

an order from the court pursuant to T1t1e 18, United States Code, Section

- 3663 that defendant make restitution to the victim(s) of the offense of conv1ct10n, or

the estate(s) of the v1ct1ms(s) Defendant understands that the court may aiso order,

if agreed to by the parties in this plea agreement, restitution to petsons other than the -

victim(S) of the offense of conviction.

The defendant agrees that because the conduct underlying the Conspu'acy (18 U S.C.

§ 371) count of conviction was committed in connection with the conduct of telernarketmg, 18

"US.C. § 2326 may apply, this may subjeet the defendant to a term ofi 1mpr1sonment ofup to 10 years -

m addrtron to the term of imprisonment imposed for the Conspn‘acy Defendant acknowledges and'

agrees that the Government gave notice of this provision in the Bill of Indtctment.

- 3. | The defendant is aware that the penalty for committing Wire Fraud is: .

_ a.
b.
C.

d
e,

3663 that defendant make restitution to the victim(s) of the offense of conviction, or

a maximum 20 years in pnson per count
a maximum $250,000 ﬁne per count,
a mandatory special assessment of $100.00 per cotmt,

a term of supervised release of not more than three years, and

: an order from the court pursuant to Title 18, United States Code_, Section

the estate(s) of the v1ct1ms(s) Defendant understands that the court may also order

if agreed to by the partres in thlS plea agreement restitution to persons other than the

v1ct1m(s) of the offense of conthron_.

Case 3:06-cr-00151-FDW Document 148 Filed 02/21/07 Page 2 of 16




The defendant agrées that becaus;: the conduct underlying the Wire Fraud (18 US.C. ‘ B
§1343) counts.of con{riction was committed in connection with the condﬁct 6f felemarkctin'g, 18
'U.S.C. § 2326 may apply, this may subject the; defendant to a term of irﬁprisonment ofupto 10 ye_aré
m addition to the term of imprisonment imposed for the Wire Fraud. Defendant acknowledges and
agrees that the Government gave noﬁée of this prdvision in the Bill of mdthment.

4. The défend_ant understands that supervised release is a term of superVision that runs
consecutively to any seﬁtence of inéarceration and_that. if the Court imposes a teﬁn 6f suﬁenkiéed- :

N rcleaéc, the _United 'States_ Proﬁation Ofﬂce will sup.e_rvise him during that term aﬁd.will re.qui.r'e that
he rﬁakc regular reporté and visits to its office. Thé defendﬁnt understands that a violation of the
conditions of supefvised release may subjecf him to. an addiﬁoﬂai period of incarceration up to the
maximum t?:nn of yearé imposed as supervised release.

5. The ciefendant is aware that the Court will consider i:he United States Sentencing
Guidelines [U.S.5.G.] in determining the appropriate sentence and that the sentence will be without
parole. The defendant is further .aware that the Court has ndt yet'determined the sentenée; that any
estimate from any source, including.defeﬂ:se couhsel, of the likely sentence isa prediction‘ ra;the; than
a promise, and that_the Court has the final disc.retion to impose any sentence up to _i_he statutory
maximum for each count. The defendant further understands thatno recommendations or agreements
by the United States are binding upon the Court. The defendant ami the United States agree that the
United States Schtenciﬁg Guidelineé effective November 1, 2004 are applicable :to the detefmh#ﬁon -
of the total offense level. | |

6. Withregardtothe United States Sentencing Guidelines, the defendanf and the United

States, pursuant to Fed. R. Crim P.1 1(c)(1)(B), stipulate and agree that the United States can prove’

3
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beyond a reasonable doubt that :
a | The amoune of loss that was known to or reasonably. foreseeeble by ¢ the i
~ defendant was in excess of $70 000 but less than $120,000 in fraudulent transact:ons with
over 250 v1ct1ms The defendant understands that “loss™ under U.S.S. G § ZBI 1, of the
_ November 1, 2004 United States Sentencing Guidelines may be dlfferent from_, greater, or
less than “restitution” under 18 USs.C. § 3556. | | e .
b. The offense level for the subject offense group, Consplracy to Comrnlt W:re_ !

Fraud and Wire Fraud, in violation of 18 U.S.C. §§ 371 and 1343 is as follows

()  Base Offense Level [US.S.G. § 2B1.1(@)]: S
SPECIFIC CHARACTERISTICS: |
(i) [USS.G §2BL.IMB)(I)(E)] Loss ST S
(More than $70,000 but less than $120,000) : '
(i) [USS.G §2B11(5)(2)(C)] Multiple victims 46
(More than 250 victims) |
@) [USS.G. § 2B1.1(b)(8)(4)] Mistepresentation EETS
‘(Acting on behalf of a government agency) ' _
) [USSG §2BLIBOB)] S B
(Committed from outside the U.S.) R
" ADJUSTMENTS
i) [USSG. §34L1®)(D)] Vulnerable Victim ~~  +2
| TOTAL (without aeceptanee adjusﬁnent) | " ': 27

Mlsrepresentatmn The parties agree that because the defendant knew that the
conspiracy and the seheme to deﬁ‘aud mcluded the mlsrepresentatlon that the defendant and

his co—consplrators were working on behalf of a government ageney, a two-level increase in
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- offense level under U.S.S.G. § 2B1.1(b)(8)(4) applies. |

Committed from Outside the United Stétes._ The parties agree that because the |

defendant knew that a substantial part of the conspiracy and the fraudulent scheme was
committed outside of the United Sté.te_s, a two-level increase in offense level under U.S.S.G.
§ 2B1.1(B)(9)(B) applies.

Vulnerable Victim Adjustment. The parties agree that because defendant knew or

should have known that the victims of the'conspiracy and the scheme to defraud were

| unusually vulnerable due to age, physical or mental'co_nditio_n, or that fhey.were otherwise

particularly susceptible to the criminal conduct, a two-level increase in offense lle'_vel under

US.S.G§ | 341.1 (b)(l ) applies. The parties agree further that many of the victims of the :

conspiracy and scheme to defraud were targeted'by_the defendaﬁt and his co-conspirat_ors
because they Weré particularly susceptible to the fraud scheme.

c. Provided that the defendant ciearly demonstrates acceptance o-f re3p0nsibility.
for his offense, as well as all relevant conduct, the goirermﬁent will 'recbmmend a two-level

reduction in offense level pursuant to U.S.5.G. § 3El.1(a). .

d. . Providedthat the defendant qualiﬁes_for adecrease under subsectidﬁ US.S.G. _ -

§ 3E1.1(a), and that the offense level determined prior to the opéra;tion of subsection

US.S5.G. § 3EL.1(a) is level 16 or greater, and upon motion of the goifernment stating that

the defendant has assisted authorities in the investigation or prosecution of his own .

misconduct by timely notifying authorities of his intention to enter a pleé of guilty, thereby

permitting the govemmeh,t to avoid preparing for trial and pérmitting the government and the

court to allocate their resources éf_ﬂciently, decrease the offense level by 1 additionai-_}evé_l_.

5
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However, the defendant understands that any t'eduction .in offense levet is nltttnatelf t‘or the =~
Court's determmatton | .

| e. There is no agreement as to defendant’s Criminal Hxstory Category
Notw1thstand1ng any recommendatlons in the Plea Agreement as to the oﬁ'ense level if the
Probation Office deterrnmes from the defendant’s criminal history that U.S.S.G. § 4BI . 1
(Caroer Offender) appli.es, that 'provisio'n may be used in detetmining the _aentence..- Should_
a statutory minimum sentenee'appls(,- the Court shall impose a s_entence..'no 'lo\it_er_than that

statutory minimum

7. The defendant agrees to pay full restitution. Defendant understands that w1t.h respect C

to resntutlon (a) as part of the sentence, the Court may order restitution be pald to any orall of the

victims that defendant and the other coconsptrators and participants in the scheme de‘frauded‘, and. -

'(b) if the Court determines. that the conduct underlying the conspiracy to cominit wire fraud and the -

wire fraud counts of conviction was committed in connection with the conduct of telemarketing' (as

- defendant has admitted), restitution will be mandatory. - Defendant agrees that the amount of '

restitution ordered by the cotJIt shall include defendant's total offense conduot, and is not limited to

" the count(s) of conviction. Accordingly, the parties agree and will jointly recommend that defendant

pay restitution in the amount of $ 5,000, 000 (five million dollars). - The defendant's restitution

obligatidn shall be joint and several with that of his co-conspirators. The restitution descr_ibed in this

paragraph shall be pa:d through the Office of the Clerk of the District Court

The defendant agrees to truthfully complete a financial statement form provxded by the

United States Attorney. The defendant shall _date said form and sign it under penalty of perjury, -

. thereby acknowledging that his financial statement fully and completely discloses his financial
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| condition as of the date itis signed. Defendant shall update the financial statement.with any material
changes to his ﬁnancial condition. Defendant shall provide to the United States his.'signed and d'ated
financial statement within 30 days of his signature on tﬁis plea agreement and any uﬁdates within
éevén da_ys of the event changing his fmanciai condition. Defendant-_understands and agrees f;hat' his
financial statement will be used for the collection of any fine or rest_itution_ pfd_ered bythe -C_ourt; and .'
| the identification of property subject to' forféinlfe. The partiés agree that thé defendant’s faiIuré to
timely aﬁd accurately cornpl.t_ete and -sign a financial statemeﬁt and any update may, in additiontoany - .
other penalty or remedy authorized by law, constituté ﬁis failure to accept respbnsib_ili_tf under |
USS.G. § 3ELL | |
For the ?feparation of his Presenténce_Report, the defendant agrees to cooperate fully with
and make a full disclosure .of all current and projected assets anﬂ property to the United St:ates
Prob'ation.Ofﬁce and to the United States. If the defendant is ordered to serve a term of sﬁpéwised
re!ease'or f»ro'bation, he agrees to make a full disclosuré'of his assets and property' to the United .
Statés Probat.ion Office prior to the temlination of his supéﬁised release or_p:ob_atibn. If thé
defendant shéuld fail to make the éforementiéned full disclosures, then lthe United Sfate_s will Be
relieved of its obligations under the Plea Agreémcnt; but the .defendant will not be'_a.l'lov.véd to:
withdraw his guilty plea. | .
| 8. The parties agréé that if the Court imposgs the stipqlatcd amount .of 'mandat&y
~ restitution set forth above, then no fine will be éppropriate. .The parties agree furtherlth-ét' intheevent
th#t the Court does not imi)ose tﬁe recommeﬁdéd 'rest.itution, the Court may irhpose a fine in its

discretion.
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9. Because more than $500.00 in restitution, ﬁnes,_ and/or assessrnent -is. owed to the
United States' govemment, a lien will be filed. The defendant understands tha_t:enc_e a ﬁen is filed
against his property, his obligation te '-pay restitution shall last for twerrty years after an& : .-
: -imprfsonment'ordered- or until his death. 18 U.S.C. § 3613. o
10.  The defendant hereby agrees topay the total amount reqmred for specral assessmente
_ ($200) to the Clerk, United States District Court before 5 00 p.m. on the day of sentencmg The
special assessment shall be paid through the office of the Clerk of the District Court. The defendant
further agreee to participate in the Inmate F fnanciei Reeponsibility Program to the _extent neces.sa_ry_ :
to fulfill all financial ebligatione due-and owing under tnis .a.gre.ement and the....létw.' S
115 Governrnent’s Recommendation Regardmg Custody |
11. Provxded that the defendant complies with all the terms of this plea agreement, the
Gonemrnent will reeomrnend that defendant be sentenced to the low end of the _advrsory guideline
' range as calculated by the Gevemrrlent pursuant to this Ag'reement.. Howe\)er, if the Court ade'pts
an offenee level or downward adjustment or departnre below the Gevemment'e_.recommendations
in this Agreement, the Govremment may recommend a sentence as near as pdssibie to wh’at the
sentenee _wonld have been if the Govemment's recommendations had been_ folle_wed. g
IV. Procedure ' | |
12, The defendant agrees that a duly-quahﬁed federal Maglsuate J udge may conduct the |
_ heanng requlred by Fed. R. Cnm P.11.
13. - With the Court’s perrmssron the factual basis, as required by Fed R Crnn P.
lf(b}(3), will be deferred until the time of sentencing, “The defendant-_stipulates that there is a

factual basis for the plea of guilty and that the Court may use Ithe_ offense conduct set out in the .
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h Presentenﬁe Report, egcept any facts to which the defendant has objectéd, td establish a factual
basis for the defendant’s plea. |
| V. Waivers
14.  The defendant understands and agrees tﬁit ifhe éhould fail to speciﬁcal}y perform
or to fulfill comp_letely each and every' one 6f his obligations undér this Plea Agré_ement, theﬁ the
- United States will be relieved of s .obligations'_ under the agreement, but the defendant-lwill.npt be
allowed to withdraw his guilty plea. o | |
| 15.  Thedefendantis aﬁare that the lﬁw prqvidés .certa;in limited ri_ghts to {vithdraﬁv aplea
of guilty. _ The defendant has discussed thesc. rights w1th defense counsel and k_lioWingly and
expressly waives any right to withdraw the plea onbc the Dlstnct Court has accepted it. .
16.  The defendant acknbwledges that Federal Rule of Criminal Procedure--lltf) and
Federal Rule of Evidence 410 are rules wh_ich ordinarily limit tiie adﬁlissibility of statements made

by a defendant in the course of plea discussions or .plea pr_oceeding's_ if a guilty plea is later

withdrawn. The defendant knowingly and voluntarily waives the rights which arise under these.

Rules. As a result of this waiver, he understands and agrees that any statements which are made

. in the course of his guilty plea or in connection with his cooperation pursuant to this plea agreement

will be admissible against him for any purpose in any criminal or civil proceeding if his guilty plea -

s subsequently withdrawn. . |
17. | The ‘defendant understands and agrees that by pléagz-;:é;i-ltf, Nl;e' 1s expressly
waiving the following rights: | | | |
a. to be tried by a jury,

b. to be assisted by an attorney at trial,

9
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c. ~to confront and crdss-gﬁamine wimeésas, and
d. | not to be compelled t6 incriminate ﬁ_imself.
18.  Defendantand defendant’§ 6omxsei'\§arrant that theyhave discuss_egi: _(-1)_defend§nt’s
" ri.ghts pursuant to 18 Usce. § 3742, 28 US.C. § 2255, and similar authc;_ri_t_i;sf_to contg;gt a
: con\_riction' and/or sentence through an appeal .or post-conviction after entenng -i‘nto.. a: plea
agreement; (2) whether or not thére- are potenﬁal issues which might be relevé.nf‘:to an appeai or
post-conviction action; and (3) the poséiﬁie ‘impact of any such issué on the '&e-s.ir:al')‘i_lity :to_thé
defendant of entering into this pleé.agreement. : | | | |
Defendant, in exchange for the concessions made by the. Unite& .Sltaltés m ‘this plea E
agreémgnt, waives all such rights to contést the conviction andfof the sentence exc;épt for (1) claims |
of ineffective assistance of counsel or (2) prosecutorial misconduct. |
Also, in exchange for the concessidns made by thé Unite'd.S.tates, defendant agrées that thé- -
' Un1ted States preserves all its nghts and dutles with respect to appeal as set forth in 18 U.S.C. .
§ 3742(b) while the defendant waives all rights to appeal or collaterally attack the sentence of
conviction with the exceptions set forth above. This agreement does not limit the Umted Stat_es in
its comments in, or responses to, any po.st—convictibn'mattefs. | |
19.  The defendant waives all .rights, whet_her asserted dircctly or by a 1;epresentati§e, to -
'- request or to receive from any dep,artment_ or agency of the United States any records. pértaining to
the investigation or prosecution of this case, including ﬁithoﬁt limitation ahy_ reco;ds that inéy be
sought under the Freedom of Information Act, 5 U.S.C. § 552, or the Privacy Act of 1974,5U.S.C.

§ 552a.

10
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| 20. The defendant stlpulates that any sentence that falls w1th1n the applicable gmdelme :
range as determined by the: Umted States Probation Office and pursuant to any departures from the

apphcable range as recommended by the government is per se reasonable. The d_efendant waives

‘any right to contest such a sentence on the basis that the Court’s imposition of such a sentence was

unreasonable or an abuse of its discretion.

21, If the Pre-Sentence Investigation (heremafter "PSI") recommends however an . -

applicable Guldehnes range higher than the Gmclelmes range Jomtly recommended by the pa.rtles -

.in this agreement, the defendant may at his discretion file with the Court a "variance motl_on"

pursuant to 18US.C. § 3553(a) to consider the factors listed therein, not later than seven hH days
prior to sentencmg, to ad_]ust the Gu1de11nes range to a level not lower than the level Jomtly agreed
upon by the partles in thls plea agreement
VL Assistance to Government
22. If requested by the United States, but only if so requested the defendant agrees to
cooperate with the United States, including but not limited to the following:

a. Tlte defentiant will provide truthful information about the subj.ect.charges '
and about any other criminal activity within the defendant’s icnowledge to any gevernnwnt
egent or agency that the United States designates. |

b.  The defendant will testify truthfully in any trial, hearing, or grand jury '-
proceeding, including, but not limited to, testimony against any co-defendants;, as the United
States designates. | |

C. | The defendant will truthfuliy discllose all Inontes,. negotiable instruments,

securities, or other things of value that are proceeds of or have been involved in, or have

11
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| been used or intended to be used to facilitate a vielation of state or fedeeal law.. The
| defendant further agrees to voluntanly forfeit sa1d property to the Umted States |
d In the event that the defendant 8 cooperanon mcludes test:fymg, the
defendant hereby waives payment of any witness fees or expenses to. wlnch he may be
otherwise ent1t1ed pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1821.
e.  The defendant understands that the Umted States desues only truthful and
| accurate information and testimony and, in fact, that knowingly giving false informaticn'or
. tesnmony.can be proseeuted as an addmonal cnmmal offense.. s .
Further, if the defendant knowingly glves false testimony, the Umted States wxll be . :
“relieved of its obligations under this Plea Agreement, except that the__. defendantfs plea-of
guilty and the resulting guilty verdict will stand. | “
f. . The defendant ;vill not violate any federal, staee, or leeal'_faw, or any order
of any court, including any conditions of erenial, pre-sentence, or post-eentenee reieaee. '
. Nethihg' that the defendant_discioses purseant to this Plea Agreement will be used -
again_et him in any other criminal proeeeding, subject to the following excepﬁonez
| ().  the United States or o_thelf.jurisdicti'on_may use any and all relev'a.nt_.
inforrnatide regarding crimes of_vi.olenee; | |
(ii). .. the United States.may. use any and all information as ﬁééessafy. ina
prosecution for peljury, or in any trial for irﬁf)eachment or rebu_ttalg
(iii).  if the defendant withdraws his piea of guilty, the-United States .mey |

use any and all disclosures in any subsequent trials or criminal proceedings; |

12
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(iv).  if the defendant violates any of the _terrns of .th.i's Plea 'Ag:'eement,
inolading the obligation to provide truthful information,- then the United States may
use any and all disclosures in subsequent trials or crirninal" proceedings; and -

(v). the Un1ted States may make indirect use of any mformatlon that the
defendant provides, 1nclud1ng mvestlgatlve leads or other ‘witnesses.

g.  The defendant 8 obhgatxon under this section is a contmumg one, and w'ill_

continue after sentencing until all investigations and/or prosecutlons to whlch the

- defendant’s cooperation may be relevant have been completed Th1s prov1s1on isamaterial - .

condition of this Plea Agreement and of all beneﬂts that accrue to the defendant pursuant '
to this agreement. | | |
" In the interests of fulﬁlling all obligaﬁOns under thia section, the defendant agrees
to waive all rights under Chapters 213 and 208 of Title 18 until such time as the United
State.s. determines that all relevant investigations and/or prosecutions have been completed.
h. The defendant fully understands that any bl'each ofthis agreement, includiné
but not limited to withholding information, misleading the United' States or any law
enforcement officer, or failing to testify truthfully at any trial, grand jury, or other judicial
proceeding, will allow the government, in its sole discretion, to withdraw from its
obligations under this Plea Agreement. In such event, the United States will be free to
proceed on any properly-filed pending, superseding, or additional charges, including any
charges dismissed pursuant to this agreement.

23.. . When and if the defendant assists the government as described above:

13
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a.  The United _Sta‘tes., in its sole discretion, will determine whether ‘said
assistance has been substantial. | | | o
b. Upon a determination that the defendant has reﬁdered sﬁbstaﬁtigl assisté.nce,.
| the government may make a motion pursuant to USS G. § 5K1.1 for imposition 6f a
- sentence below the épplicable Sentencing Guidelines, The United Statés niay also, within
its sole discretion, move the Court pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 3553(e) to.i.n.l.pose .a sentence_.
below any applicable statutory rﬁandatory minimum.

The de.fendant rccogri‘izes that, even if the United States make.s.a ‘recommendatidn |
i)ursuant_to US.S. G; $ 5KI 1, the Court"canno_f depart below the statutory_minimum unless |
the United States also __inclu&es a specific recommendation pursuant to _1 8U.S.C. § 355_3(_e).

c. Regﬁrdless of the nature and extent of anf suBstantial assistance that the
defendant renders, the Unjted States will not move for a downward dci:arture if the
defe_n‘dant also knowingly furnishes information that is materially false.

| d.©  Any determination that the defendant has failed to provide -substantia_i
assistance or has knowingly frovided false information is within the sole discretion of the
' Unifed States, and the defendant wai'v_é:s all objections and righ_té of ai)peal or colléteral -.
~ attack of such a determination. | |

€. The defendant ﬁnderstands that if the United States mﬁkes a motion fqr |
downward departure, the moﬁon is not binding on the District:Couft. The Court ﬁvill_
determine in its discretibn whether fo grant or deny such departure and the extent of the

| departure. | |

IX. Conclusion
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- 24. The defendant _understahds that if he breaches this Plea Agreemént, or violates any
federal, state or local law, or any ordef of any éourt, including any condition of pre-trial c;r preQ
sentence, or post-sentence release, the United States wiﬂ be relieved of its .'obligations under this
.Plee.l Agreement, but thé defendant will not._be allowed to withdraw his guilty plea. The United
‘States will be fre¢ to proceed on any properly-filed .d.ismissed, pendiné, supers'edihg, or additidnal
charges. | | | |

i

A

25.  There afe 10 agreements, representations, or understandings between the parties in
this case, other than those explicitly set forth in this Plea Agreement and none will be entered into '
unless executed in writing and signed by all parties.

' SO AGREED: -

GRETCHEN C.F. SHAPPERT
United States Attorney
- Western District of North Carolma

STEVEN A. TYRRELL
Acting Chief
Fraud Section, Criminal Division

MM/ - | DATED: ;1//20[_/47

PETER B. LOEWENBERG
Trial Attorney
PATRICK M. DONLEY
‘Senior Litigation Co

stice

%ﬁ:ﬂem of

Rié Iérown, Jr., Attorney for Defendant -

e 9/7/¢7
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BRIAN WALL COYLE, Defendant

| EZZ.‘LO e’-;L ,. | _DAT#D:’ &/7(637
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